
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 28, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on February 28, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the February 28, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Ms. Slma Shelbayah, representing the Islamic Community Center of Atlanta sang the
Invocation in the Arabic language.


Commissioner Oddo led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of March 7 and March 12, 2013 as “Cancer Prevention Days”.


Commissioner McCarty read the proclamation for “Cancer Prevention Days”.  Ms. Nikki Adams, representing
the American Cancer Society, spoke about cancer prevention and a study designed to learn more about cancer
and its treatment.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of Petition 1225-12, Gregory H. Moody, Jr. and Brenda K. Moody, Owners, and Lynette
M. Bowles, Agent, request to rezone 2.49 acres from A-R: Agricultural-Residential to A-R (LNS):
Agricultural-Residential (Legal Nonconforming Status) to bring said property into zoning compliance.
This property is located at 250 Rising Star Road and also fronts on Old Greenville Road.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings concerning the rules
on how the public hearings would proceed.  A copy of Introduction to Public Hearings, identified as “Attachment
2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Mr. Frisina introduced Petition 1225-12 to the Board.  


Ms. Lynette Bowles said she and the Moody’s had tried for about four years to get an illegal lot that the Moody’s
purchased as a foreclosure property to be recognized as a legal nonconforming lot.  She stated that the
County’s previous attorney, and that Mr. Frisina and Mr. Dennis Dutton had worked hard on the problem.  She
said all the papers were signed, and that the Moody’s paid a large sum of money to have the property rezoned.
She stated that if something catastrophic happened to the house, and irrespective of the fact that they pay
insurance and property taxes, it cannot be rebuilt.  She said the family is upside-down on the loan but intends
to stay at the property.  She pointed out that the County has worked hard at this issue, and she petitioned the
Board to please bring the property into some kind of legal standard or compliance.


Mr. Greg Moody said he worked really hard on the property and it bothered him tremendously to know that his
property is an illegal lot or a nonconforming lot.  He said all the family wanted to do was to bring the lot back
into conformity.  He said it would remove a stress off of him to know that the property was made correct, and
he said he would appreciate it if the Board could make that happen.


Ms. Bowles added that the property is a nightmare in its current status.  She said the people who owned the
property before have passed away, there is no recourse, and that their hope was in the Board. Mr. Moody said
he bought the house “as is”, but that he had no prior knowledge of problems with the property when he bought
it.  


Mrs. Brenda Moody read her comments to the Board.  She spoke about how she and her family are proud to
live in Fayetteville, about Mr. Moody’s personal character, and about how they live, work and worship in Fayette
County.  She said the family wants to live in peace but that they are deprived of peace since they know if
disaster occurs to their house and they will be unable to rebuild.  She said it was the County’s lawyer who
helped write the by-law to help them fix the problem, and that the citizens and staff of Fayette County who
helped research for years the information that had led to the opportunity for them to stand up before the Board.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 3


She asked the Board to not allow anything to jeopardize her family’s opportunity to have peace and asked for
the Board to vote “yes” on behalf of the family.  She closed saying the family did not plan on leaving, that the
family could have just walked away from the property, but that her husband lives by a motto: “a man is as good
as his name.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport provided a legal analysis of the request for the Board’s
consideration.


Chairman Brown stated that when the County looked at creating a Legal Nonconforming Status, he was in
opposition to it.  He said his opposition was based on “very solid reasons on the County’s behalf and on behalf
of the citizens of the County.”  He explained that once the County creates this type of status, it would just create
more and more problems.  He said there are some things the Board is bound to do [such as] enforcing the
ordinances and making sure people comply with the law.  He explained that there are other things that are
destined to be in the civil courts, and that it is not the responsibility of the Board of Commissioners to settle
those types of problems.  He stated that if the Board got into the business of settling individual disputes related
to contractual land purchases and other purchases, the Board would be bogged down and it would set
precedence that it would later regret, and that it would invite other property owners who have no compelling
case while binding the Board to do what those property owners want.  Chairman Brown continued that what
he was doing was not joyful, but was with a heavy heart, since what was stated about the Moody’s was true
and since they thought they were getting an honest purchase.  Chairman Brown made a motion in the form of
a request for the Board to deny the petition based on not meeting the application of item number one (1) listed
in the ordinance and to refund any application fees to the Moody’s that they may have paid to the County in
asking for this petition.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.


Commissioner Barlow said it was enjoyable to have the Moody’s come to the meeting and to “use the Lord as
your guiding light.”  He said it was true that what you put your hands to “do it as unto the Lord.”  He said it was
also true that “a good name is worth more than silver and gold” and he predicted that their good name will
continue regardless of how the Board voted.  He encouraged the Moody’s to look to the Lord, and said God
would raise them up and use them as an example to the Fayette community.  He said he felt their hearts, and
that they were precious.


Commissioner Oddo said he has been where the Moody’s are.  He said this issue has been a very difficult one
for him, and that this issue has been in the back of his mind since it came up on how to do the right thing.  He
continued that if he could vote with his heart that there would be no question, but that he had to vote with his
head and he had to consider all of the possible scenarios that he could think of.  He said the issues do not
involve only the Moody’s but it involves all of the people, and he asked what would happen if a precedent is
set.  He said, rightly or wrongly, the Board was trying to maintain a certain way of life in Fayette County.  He
said he was worried about changing the entire zoning method in Fayette County to take care of a situation that
the Moody’s had nothing to do with.  He said he could not think of a worse situation than what the Moody’s were
in, but he had to think of everybody else as well and how to manage the County going forward.  He said he felt
for the Moody’s, but that he did not think this was the way to solve the problem.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 4


Commissioner Ognio agreed with Commissioner Oddo.  He said the entire Board felt for the Moody’s and have
been in similar situations where something went wrong.  He said if the Board could vote with their heart they
would vote one way, but there were legalities and other issues.  He hoped the Moody’s would hang in there and
see if a solution could be found.


Commissioner Barlow added that he wanted to remind the people that when they were elected they took an
oath the day they were sworn in to uphold the laws and ordinances of the county and of the United States of
America.  He said the Board has to uphold the laws and ordinances, regardless of how they personally feel.
 
The motion to deny Petition 1225-12 based on not meeting the application of Item Number One (1) listed in the
Ordinance, and that the County refund any application fees to the Moody’s that they may have paid to the
County in asking for the petition passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty abstaining from the vote.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Consideration of Petition 1226-13, Pauline D. Boyd, Owner, and James Babb, Agent, request to rezone
property from A-R: Agricultural-Residential to R-70: Single-Family Residential District to develop one
(1) single-family dwelling lot.  This property consists of 2.17 acres located in Land Lot 19 of the 9th


District and fronts on Barsi Point.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced Petition 1226-13 to the Board.


Mr. Brian Babb and Mr. James Babb spoke in favor of Petition 1226-13.  No one else spoke in favor of or in
opposition to the petition.  


Mr. Frisina informed the Board that the petition was approved by the Planning Commission with one (1)
condition.  Mr. Frisina then read the following condition into the record:  


That the owner / developer shall dedicate at no cost to Fayette County, via quit claim deed, 30 feet of right of


way as measured from the centerline of Barsi Point prior to approval of the minor subdivision plat.  Said


dedication area shall be shown on the minor subdivision plat.  Condition is to ensure provision of adequate right


of way.    


Chairman Brown moved to approve Petition 1226-13 with one condition as read by Mr. Frisina.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion.  Interim County Attorney Davenport asked if the applicant was okay with the
condition as presented.  The applicant stated that he was.  Commissioner Oddo asked if the application
conformed to the Land Use Plan, and Mr. Frisina replied that it did.


The motion to approve Petition 1226-13 with one condition as read by Mr. Frisina passed unanimously.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


 4. Consideration of Petition No. 1227-13, D. Michael Travis and Linda H. Travis, Owners, and Alvin
Williams, Agent, request to rezone property from R-40: Single-Family Residential District to G-B:
General Business to develop a Movie and TV Production Studio.  This property consists of 24.03 acres
located in Land Lot 198 of the 13th District and fronts on S.R. 138.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 5


Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced Petition 1227-13 to the Board.


Mr. Alvin Williams spoke in favor of Petition 1227-13. 


Mr. David Brill, President of the North Fayette Community Association, spoke in favor of Petition 1227-13.  He
also thanked the Planning and Zoning staff for their work in presenting an ordinance that allows for and protects
from this type of use.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Mr. Frisina read the following condition into the record:


The owner / developer connects the development to the Fayette County Water System for fire protection as


required by the Fire Marshal.


Chairman Brown moved to approve Petition 1227-13 with one condition.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion.


Chairman Brown said he agreed with Mr. Brill, and he said this was an area where “we really did it right.”  He
said he was very proud of the County, of the land owners, and the applicant.  He said they took the community’s
concerns into consideration, attended a lot of association meetings, especially in the North Fayette Community
area,  and staff was receptive to the views of the individuals who live in the area.  He said staff crafted a specific
ordinance that met both the applicant’s needs and served to protect the citizens living in the area.  He thought
it was a great effort all around since everyone pitched in from the citizens to the staff to the applicant.  He
wished they could all go that well.


Commissioner Barlow thanked Mr. Williams for his patience, and he thanked the county staff for not giving up.
He commented on Mr. William’s patience and courtesy, and thanked him for it.  


Interim County Attorney Davenport asked the applicant if he was okay with the condition as read.  Mr. Williams
replied that he was okay with the condition as read.


The motion to approve Petition 1227-13 with one condition passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Lee Hearn: Mr. Lee Hearn spoke about the LOST agreement that the Board approved, saying Fayette County would
lose $150,000 per year in LOST revenue.  He asked which programs would have to be cut due to the agreed upon
shortfall.  He stated that the LOST agreement was a poor deal for Fayette County’s taxpayers.  He questioned how the
County Attorney selection process was concerning to him.  He asked how the process worked for the selection of Mr.
Davenport as the Interim Attorney, and he questioned how Mr. Davenport could represent both Fayette County and the
Town of Tyrone since he serves as the attorney for the Town of Tyrone.  He asked if there was an advertisement for a
permanent attorney.  He commented on the Jail Committee and how members were selected to sit on the committee.
He asked if the Board intended to finish the West Fayetteville Bypass, about what policies have been put into place to
govern the upcoming budget process, how the Count would handle declining revenue.  He spoke about the Ethics
Ordinance saying the goal was to prevent Commissioners from giving day to day instructions to staff since it is the job







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 6


of the County Administrator to direct staff.  He said the Board needed to be a policy making board and it needed to let
the County Administrator direct the day-to-day operations of the County.  He thanked the Board for an opportunity to
speak, and he closed saying “Expect to see me often.”  


Andy Range: Mr. Andy Range said he noticed that between the addresses of 195 and 337 Adams Road that there are
no fire hydrants.  He explained that it meant there are about sixteen houses in that stretch and if there was a fire those
houses could be in trouble.  He continued that there are areas along Tyrone Road where there are no houses but with
fire hydrants on both sides of the road.  He asked the County to look at the issue.  Chairman Brown stated staff would
review and there would be an explanation at the next Board meeting.  


CONSENT:


Chairman Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda Item 7 from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  Commissioner
Ognio asked to remove Consent Agenda Items 5-6 from the Consent Agenda for discussion.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 8-10.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-02 imposing a Wireless Enhanced 911
Charge upon each wireless telecommunications connection subscribed to by subscribers whose billing
address is within the jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia at a rate of $1.50 per month per wireless
connection. 


Commissioner Ognio said everyone wants 911 services, and it was known that E-911 needs money.  He said
he had an issue with fees since he felt that the government was created to be tax-based and the citizens have
more control over taxes than they do fees.  He acknowledged that the citizens probably would not pass an
increase as a tax’; making this issue very hard for him.  Still, he said money was needed for the needed E-911
services. 


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 5.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Chairman Brown stated that his comment applied to both Consent Items 5 and 6, and that the County has a
lot of mandates put on it by the federal government, Federal Communications Commission regulations, and
other requirements that must be met to provide an E-911 service.  He said this was actually one of the few
mandates where they gave the County an ability to pay for it.  


County Administrator Rapson noted that this was for a system that was capable of identifying, wirelessly, what
the billing location is and where the caller physically is.  He said it was a Tier II equipment type charge under
discussion, and that the fee would not be implemented until the end of June.


Commissioner Oddo said he was philosophically very close to what Commissioner Ognio was saying, and that
it was a tough decision to make since he is not a “fee type person”.  He said it was like “what hand is taking the
money out of my pocket”.  He then told of a time when he had to call 911.  He said it was a tough choice, but
Fayette County has a fantastic system that needs to be maintained, and that the money would be designated
for E-911.  







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 7


An unidentified member from the audience asked if a person has both a land line and a cell phone, would that
person be billed twice.  The Board replied that the person would be billed twice.


The motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 5 passed 4-1 with Commissioner McCarty voting in opposition.
A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-02, identified as “Attachment 6", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-03 imposing a 911 charge for Voice over
Internet Protocol (VOIP) Services subscribed to by subscribers whose billing addresses are within the
jurisdiction of Fayette County, Georgia, at a rate of $1.50 per month per VOIP subscriber.


Commissioner Ognio said he had the same opinion on this item as he did for Consent Agenda Item 5.  He
stated that VOIP is up and coming, but he still had reservations about imposing fees.  


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 6.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Chairman Brown said he has VOIP, that he has had it for over eleven years, and that he has not been paying
the fee because he has not had a land line for eleven years.  He said everyone has been paying for his E-911
service, and he thanked them for the past eleven years.  He said he now has the opportunity to start paying
into the system which is fair and adequate to do.  He said he appreciated having an ambulance or a police car
show up at his front door whenever he dials, and to have them come very quickly.  He thanked the cities and
county for working in relation to the E-911 system, and that there was a very equitable E-911 agreement
between the jurisdictions last year.  


 The motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 6 passed 4-1 with Commissioner McCarty voting in opposition.
A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-03, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-04 supporting State Ethics
Reform.


Chairman Brown said Resolution 2013-04 was an aggressive resolution in favor of Ethics Reform in the State
Legislature.  He credited State Senator Josh McKoon, who is in the 3rd Congressional District.  He said Senator
McKoon has bravely taken on the Ethics Reform issue almost single-handedly in the legislature.  He said when
you take all the people in the Senate and all the people in the House in last year’s session, and take the
number of people who stood up for ethics, you could count them all on one hand.  He explained that Senator
McKoon was the one who led the fight, and because of his efforts the legislature now has to take notice and
the Governor and Speaker are acting.  He pointed out that the voters also should be credited because during
the summer referendum of 2012 there was a question on both the Democrat and Republican ballots asking
voters if they were in favor of caps on lobbying gifts and in favor of ethics reform.  He reported that the
overwhelming majority of Fayette County citizens and Georgians voted in favor of the caps and the ethics
reform.  He thanked the people of Fayette County for forcing the issue and thanked Senator McKoon for taking
a bold stand “very much on his own and sticking up for the little guys.”


Chairman Brown moved to adopt Resolution 2013-04.  Commissioners Oddo and McCarty seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-
04, identified as ‘Attachment 8", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 8


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Fayette
County School District, the City of Peachtree City, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the
Town of Brooks to establish the methodology for collecting and distributing ad valorem taxes and the
new Title Ad Valorem Tax (TAVT); along with other procedures.  A copy of the request and
Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment 9", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


9. Approval of the County Administrator’s request for authorization to sign an agreement between Fayette
County, Georgia and Comcast Cable Communications Management for installation, operation, and
maintenance by Comcast Cable, at Comcast’s sole cost and expense, of cable and other equipment,
to provide communications service to Fayette Senior Services.  A copy of the request and authorized
agreement, identified as “Attachment 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the February 13, 2013 Board of Commissioners Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes and
the February 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Appointment of Commissioner to Review Applications filling an Open Position on the Ethics Board:  County
Administrator Rapson informed the Board that there is a vacancy associated with the Ethics Board in regard to the
alternate position, that the opening has been advertised per the Board’s policy.  He asked the Chairman to appoint
someone to look at the applications and go through the interview process.  Chairman Brown appointed Vice Chairman
Oddo to review the applications for the Ethics Board.  


Reconcilement of the Early Retirement Initiative Program: County Administrator Rapson said he completed the
reconcilement of the Early Retirement Initiative Program (ERIP) that occurred in 2012.  He said thirty-two employees
elected to participate with ERIP in June 2012, and that he provided an analysis to each Commissioner with regards to
abolishing 21 positions.  He said ten of the positions were associated with the ERIP and nine others were existing
vacancies.  He added there were two other positions that were never funded as part of the budget.  He said the
abolishment and reductions will be implemented as part of the 2014 Budget and it will offset the salaries and benefits
by approximately two million dollars.  He said the ERIP was advertised as saving the County millions of dollars, and that
the abolishment would make the savings a reality.


Update on Medical Plan: County Administrator Rapson said he had fascinating information on the medical plan and
staff would probably bring a recommendation to the Board by March 14, 2013 in regards to what the plan is.  He said
the current plan is costing Fayette County millions of dollars and this recommendation should offset the shortfalls that
will be experienced this year similar to the $1.8 million dollar shortfall experienced last year.  


Response to Mr. Hearn’s Comments:  County Administrator Rapson commented on a couple of statements Mr. Hearn
made during public comment.  Concerning the LOST agreement, Mr. Rapson explained it was an equitable agreement
that was made with all the cities; meaning every single city in Fayette County.  He said the agreement did not cost
Fayette County $1.5 million, explaining it did cost Fayette County any money from year to year.  He stated that Local
Option Sales Tax grows annually by about 2 ½ -3% per year, and the County ratcheted back to get to the 48.5% over
a five-year phase in.  He said next year, instead of having a 2% or 3% increase in LOST, the County will experience a
2% increase.  Mr. Rapson pointed out that the Board approved Consent Agenda Item 8 and he said it is absolutely 







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 9


correct that Mr. Davenport is the attorney for the Town of Tyrone.  He explained that was why the Board appointed a
special attorney, Don Comer, to do the Intergovernmental Agreement.  He closed saying his relationship with the Board
of Commissioners is just great, but he appreciated Mr. Hearn for checking in.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Planning Commission to Reconsider Legal Non Conforming Lot Status in the Zoning Ordinance:  Interim County
Attorney Dennis Davenport said that, based on the work he performed on the Legal Non-Conforming Status (LNS) part
of the Zoning Ordinance, the Board may want to consider providing direction to the Planning Commission to have them
reconsider whether or not LNS should remain in the zoning ordinance at their next available meeting.  Chairman Brown
replied that this issue would be placed on the upcoming agenda for a formal vote.


Notification of Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport notified the Board that Land Acquisition,
Pending Litigation, and Personnel needed to be discussed in Executive Session.  


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow thanked the audience for coming to the meeting.  He thanked Ms.
Shelbayah for offering the Invocation.  


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo also thanked the audience for attending the meeting.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown replied to the issues Mr. Hearn spoke about.  He said the LOST agreement was
exactly how County Administrator Rapson said.  He said as someone who negotiated the LOST agreement on behalf
of the cities ten years ago, he could tell the citizens that the cities had an agreement rammed down their throats and the
cities were in fact 50% of the population at that time.  He continued that the populations of Fayetteville and Tyrone have
grown during the ten years since the last LOST agreement was implemented, and LOST is based off population.  He
said the current Board of Commissioners has agreed that the County and the cities are “all in this together” and the
County worked with the cities with an agreement that no one would be dead on the table after the deal was done.
Concerning Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, Chairman Brown agreed that he has adamantly been saying that
the County needs to have an interview process and an application process for those bodies, and that every position that
the current Board has appointed has gone through the interview process with a public release.  He said that during his
previous two years on the Board and for the duration of Mr. Hearn’s time on the Board, there was no citizens’ committee
appointed “because they didn’t care enough about the citizens to appoint a citizen’s committee.” Chairman Brown said
the current Board wants to hear from the citizens.  He continued that he went to the Board, asked permission during a
public meeting to create the committee, and it is a very diverse group of citizens with multiple talents who live across
Fayette County.  He said the Board was put together to address a problem with the jail and how to house inmates in the
future.  He said there would be maybe three or four meetings in total, and the difference between the Jail Committee
and other committees and authorities is that the other committees and authorities are long-term bodies.  Chairman Brown
stated that Dennis Davenport is the Interim County Attorney, and the reason the Board had to appoint an interim County
Attorney was because the previous Board would not allow him and Commissioner McCarty to appoint somebody else
before the end of the year.  He said when the Board had its first meeting of 2013 with no County Attorney it is not in the
best interest of the Board or the citizens to conduct the business without legal consultation.  He said the need was to
get an immediate attorney on Board, so the Board appointed an Interim County Attorney.  He thanked Mr. Davenport
for being the Interim County Attorney and for filling in a gap when the Board needed legal counsel.  Commissioner Brown
continued saying ‘the man who deficit spent for four consecutive years, expenditures exceeding revenue for four
consecutive years, who paved gravel roads with one house on them with your tax dollars at the same time we’re laying







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 10


off people through attrition who are doing services that are absolutely necessary to the people, I think is unconscionable.”
He said he did not apologize for anything that he is doing related to spending because in the Fiscal Year 2014 budget
there will not be expenditures exceeding revenue.  He said the Board would make necessary adjustments and if it does
not then the people need to “kick our butts out of here.”  


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow said that was a wonderful explanation, but he thought Mr. Hearn was
just bitter that he lost his last election.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Interim County Attorney informed the Board that it needed to also review the Executive Session Minutes of February 14,
2013, so there were a total of four items under consideration for Executive Session.


Land Acquisition, Pending Litigation, Personnel, and Executive Session Minutes:  Chairman Brown moved to
recess into Executive Session for one land acquisition item, one pending litigation item, one personnel item, and review
of Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 8:17 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:36 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved
to reconvene into Regular Meeting and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.
Commissioners Barlow and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.
A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment  11 “, follows these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


Personnel Matters:  Chairman Brown stated that since the Compensation and Classification Schedule was not followed
previously for two positions that the Board wanted to make salary adjustments for those two positions.  Chairman Brown
moved to increase the County Clerk’s compensation to $55,090.28 with retroactive pay dating back to July 18, 2012,
to increase the Human Resources’ Analyst compensation to $47,504.18 with retroactive pay dating back to July 18,
2012, and to move Mrs. Peggy Butler to the E-911 Department to a position that will be classified at a later date.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  County Administrator Rapson stated he would need a salary approval
for the new position in the amount of $57,879.00 for Mrs. Butler.  Chairman Brown amended his motion to include the
salary approval as requested, and Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  


The motion to increase the County Clerk’s compensation to $55,090.28 with retroactive pay dating back to July 18, 2012,
to increase the Human Resources’ Analyst’s compensation to $47,504.18 with retroactive pay dating back to July 18,
2012, to move Mrs. Peggy Butler to the E-911 Department to a position that will be classified at a later date, and to
approve a salary of $57,879.00 for Mrs. Butler passed unanimously. 


February 14, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the February 14, 2013 Executive
Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
February 28, 2013
Page Number 11


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the February 28, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 14th day of March 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
STORMWATER TOWN HALL MEETING


Board of Commissioners


March 4,2013


 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


:The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on March 4, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Phil Mallon, Public Works Director


Tony Parrott, Water System Director


Vanessa Birrell, Stormwater Management Director


Bryan Keller
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the Stormwater Town Hall Meeting to order at 6:59 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow offered the Invocation.


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Town Hall Meeting:


1. Opening Remarks by Chairman Steve Brown.


Chairman Brown gave some opening remarks about the difficult decisions that the Board of Commissioners


would have to make, but added that the Board of Education was also meeting and would have to make difficult


decisions as well.







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2013
Page Number 2


2. Stormwater PowerPoint Presentation.


Chairman Brown presented a PowerPoint Document to the audience.  He reminded the audience that during


the first town hall meeting, he promised several property owners that he would visit their property.  He then


discussed the properties that he visited and if the County could help rectify the problems he found.  Chairman


Brown and County Administrator Rapson reviewed some of the suggestions made by the citizens during the


first Town Hall meeting and the County’s findings on those suggestions.  A copy of the PowerPoint


presentation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Public Input.


The following people commented and provided input during the Town Hall Meeting:


1) Richard Maxwell, Highway 92


2) Larry Redding, Woosley (did not provide an address)


3) Sandy Lake Circle (Speaker did not provide a name.)


4) Jerry Mayfield, Sandy Creek Road


5) Louise McKnight, 100 Bridger Point Road


6) Leonard Terrell (?), Harp Road 


7) Harris McFarren, Rising Star Road


8) Mickey Harp (did not provide an address)


9) Rick Medder (did not provide an address)


10) Pat Hinchey (did not provide an address)


11) Larry Wright, Stanley Road


12) Marion McKaren, 1685 Highway 54 East


13) Darwin Edwards, Shoal Creek Road


14) Dan Hogan (did not provide an address)


15) Tim Thoms, 625 McBride Road, Fayetteville


16) Gene Jenkins, 510 Hawthorne Drive


17) Laura Maxwell (did not provide an address)


18) Cheryl Pressler, 105 Kayla Drive


19) Ted Tools, River Forest Subdivision


20) Fred Albrecht, 383 Gingercake Road, Fayetteville


21) Joe Mask, 115 Bernhard Road


22) Ferrell Bray, Fletcher Ford Road


23) Clint Stokes, 210 Highland Hills Road


24) Arthur Terry, 349 Lees Lake Road


25) Roy Terry, 335 Peaceful Way


26) Robert Torbush, 422 Lees Lake Road


27) Walter Fort, 626 Inman Road


28) Speaker Unknown, 127 Buckeye Road, Fayetteville


29) Bill Schley, 287 Mud Bridge Road, Woolsey


30) Mary Carol Schley, 287 Mud Bridge Road, Woolsey


31) Paul Arnold, 209 Price Road, Fayetteville


32) Speaker Unknown, 319 Adams Road, Fayetteville (Recording unclear)


33) Louise McKnight, 100 Bridger Point Road (spoke for a second time)


34) Preston Twyman, 145 Blossom Ridge Trail, Fayetteville







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2013
Page Number 3


35) Henry Dickerson, Woolsey


36) Jenny Parker, 265 Price Road, Brooks


37) Charles Gilreath, 235 Brookshire Drive, Fayetteville


38) Bill Ballard, 1160 Antioch Road, Fayetteville


39) Unidentified speaker, 283 Hills Bridge, Fayetteville


Five additional people spoke who did not provide either a name or an address for the record.


The following suggestions were provided by those who spoke:


1) Stormwater Maintenance needs to be a county-wide effort for all of Fayette County’s citizens; not just


unincorporated Fayette County.


2) Georgia Power should pay for pile-ons, concrete abutments and other impervious surfaces that belong


to them.


3) The Stormwater Department needs to be put under the County’s Road Maintenance Department so


that every citizen in Fayette County can be taxed fairly.


4) Communicate with the citizens better, some do not get newspapers thrown in their driveways and did


not know about the Stormwater fee until it was mailed to them in December.


5) Keep library, recreation, schools, and other similar services that retains Fayette County’s youth and


will undermine the County’s future if they are cut.


6) Use the money paid for “road taxes” to make the repairs.


7) Citizens take individual initiative to repair the problems that are on their property, and the county


should send someone who is knowledgeable to the property of each person who complains to guide


them on how to fix the problems.


8) Stop repaving roads over rotted corrugated pipes.


9) Preventative maintenance needs to be practiced all the time, not just when a road needs attention.


10) The problem with the bill is that it is hard to know what is being billed.


11) Is there consideration of a moratorium on new development since it the County cannot afford to fix


what is already here how can it maintain new development.


12) It appears that if someone has acreage then they are paying more money, and that is not fair.  The


whole system needs to be scrapped.


13) Road crew to survey all of Price Road.


14) The County needs to live within its budget each year, and each year fix what it can.


4. Announce Monday, March 25 as third Stormwater Town Hall Meeting.


Chairman Brown announced that the next Stormwater Town Hall Meeting would be held on March 25, 2013.







Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2013
Page Number 4


Adjournment


 The March 4, 2013 Stormwater Town Hall Meeting was adjourned at 9:39 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 14th day of March 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


March 14, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of March 16, 2013 as “Master Gardener Extension Volunteer
Appreciation Day.”


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell
Contracting of Tyrone as the primary vendor, to C.W. Matthews, Inc. of
Tyrone as the secondary vendor, and to C.W. Matthew’s Inc of Forest Park
as a backup vendor for the purchase of asphalt for the 2013 calendar year,
in an amount not to exceed $2,660,000.00, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contracts. 


3. Approval of the February 21, 2013 Department Outreach Meeting Minutes,
the February 28, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, and the
March 4, 2013 Stormwater Town Hall Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


4. Consideration of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution
2013-07 opposing the split of the Griffin Judicial Circuit and the creation of a
separate circuit for Fayette County.


5. Consideration of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution
2013-08 supporting the rescission of the Road Tax Penalty from the
Transportation Investment Act.


6. Consideration of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to adopt Resolution
2013-09 removing Fayette County from the Concept 3 Transit Plan.


7. Approval of the medical plan selection team’s recommendation to award
CIGNA as Fayette County’s medical provider.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 14, 2013
Page Number 2


8. Consideration of administration of West Fayetteville Bypass related to handling the legal ramifications, existing
rate of completion, and current environmental issues.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of the medical plan selection team’s recommendation to award CIGNA Fayette County’s medical provider. 


                                                   


The medical plan selection team (Chairman Brown, Commissioner Barlow, County Administrator, Finance Director, Human Resources 


Director and Human Resources Benefits Administrator) interviewed the top three finalists Blue Cross/Blue Shield, CIGNA and Humana 


Healthcare.  Based on the best and final offers received, there was unanimous agreement that CIGNA offered the best over-all medical 


plan and lowest cost. (Attachment A) 


 


CIGNA reduces expected claims costs due to deeper discounts when compared with Humana, our current provider. The average network 


discounts of CIGNA are 59% - higher discounts mean lower claims. CIGNA provides a performance guarantee for implementation and 


service levels along with an integrated solution and $70,000 for wellness incentives.  


 


CIGNA’s expected claims are lower than both competitors and caps the County’s exposure at 106% of its (lower) expected claims that 


make up 84% to 89% of the expected maximum liability. The difference is cost between renewal and CIGNA is over $1.5M year.  


 


Once approved, staff will begin working with CIGNA to develop plan modifications for plan tiering, stop-loss, and wellness initiatives.  


Approval of the medical plan selection team’s recommendation to award CIGNA Fayette County’s medical provider.


 


Yes March 2010


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Marketing & Renewal (page #4): Humana originally proposed $8,955,755 renewal or $1.9M, 27.1% increase. Apples to Apples their best 


and final option is $9,937,346 or $2.9M, 41.0% increase. CIGNA proposal is $7,835,598 (including $1M allowance for Humana run-out 


claims) or $2,101,748 less expensive. CIGNA’s offers a performance guarantees for implementation and service levels, integrated 


solution for wellness, a minimum premium is an alternative funding arrangement that reduces the risk for the County and caps the 


County’s exposure at 106% of its (lower) expected claims minimizing the County’s maximum exposure to to claims and fees.  


New BusinessMarch 14, 2013







Financial Review


FINANCIAL REVIEW 


Fayette County, Georgia


Effective Period: June 01, 2013 Through May 31, 2014 (Actual Contract to June 30, 2014)


Covered Units (Subscribers)


Single 285 285 285 285 285 285


Family 337 337 337 337 337 337


Total Number of Employees 622 622 622 622 622 622


Total Number of Members 1378 1378 1378 1378 1378 1378


Charge for Admin Services


Humana 


Original 


Renewal


Humana 


Revised 


Renewal


Cigna 


1st Year


Cigna


Mature*


BCBS


1st Year


BCBS


Mature*


2013 Administrative Fee $36.50 $22.57 $70.32 $70.32 $33.95 $33.95


2013 Reinsurance Fee (HCR) $3.63 $3.63 Included Included $4.88 $4.88


Composite COBRA/HIPAA included $40.13 $26.20 $70.32 $70.32 $38.83 $38.83


Total $299,530 $195,557 $524,868 $524,868 $289,827 $289,827


9.9% -28.2% 92.7% 92.7% 6.4% 6.4%


Contract Basis 12/15 12/15 12/36 12/36 12/24 12/24


SPECIFIC Stop-Loss


Annual Maximum Reimbursement $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited


Lifetime Maximum Reimbursement Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited


Specific Deductible (per Covered Person) $100,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000


Coinsurance Level 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%


Specific Premium


Single Rate $71.41 $42.55 $73.65 $73.65 $74.90 $74.90


Family Rate $196.38 $117.01 $73.65 $73.65 $74.90 $74.90


Composite $139.12 $82.89 $73.65 $73.65 $74.90 $74.90


Estimated Annual Specific Premium $1,038,392 $618,691 $549,724 $549,724 $559,054 $559,054


25.0% -25.5% -33.8% -33.8% -32.7% -32.7%


Aggregate Premium 12/12 ASL 12/15 ASL No ASL Fee No ASL Fee 12/12 ASL 12/24 ASL


Single Rate $1.91 $2.07 $0.00 $0.00 $4.50 $4.50


Family Rate $5.24 $5.68 $0.00 $0.00 $4.50 $4.50


Composite $3.71 $4.03 $0.00 $0.00 $4.50 $4.50


Estimated Annual Aggregate Premium $27,691 $30,080 $0 $0 $33,588 $33,588


0% 9% 21.3% 21.3%


Total Annual Premium and Admin $1,365,613 $844,328 $1,074,592 $1,074,592 $882,469 $882,469


% over current for all fixed cost combined 20.7% -25.3% -5.0% -5.0% -22.0% -22.0%


AGGREGATE Stop-Loss RENEWAL RENEWAL Cigna Cigna BCBS BCBS


Projected Claims 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%


Single $417.59 $500.27 $728.15 $828.99 $759.10 $893.06


Family $1,148.36 $1,375.74 $728.15 $828.99 $759.10 $893.06


Composite $813.52 $974.60 $728.15 $828.99 $759.10 $893.06


Estimated Annual Claims $6,072,113 $7,274,414 $5,434,912 $6,187,581 $5,665,922 $6,665,800


Monthly Aggregate Deductible Factors 125% 125% 106% 106% 110% 110%


Single $521.98 $625.34 $771.84 $878.73 $835.19 $982.37


Family $1,435.45 $1,719.67 $771.84 $878.73 $835.19 $982.37


Composite $1,016.90 $1,218.25 $771.84 $878.73 $835.19 $982.37


Projected Annual Aggregate Deductible* $7,590,142 $9,093,018 $5,761,006 $6,558,836 $6,233,858 $7,332,410


Total Combined Est. Max. Liability $8,955,755 $9,937,346 $6,835,598 $7,633,428 $7,116,327 $8,214,878


% over current for Max Liability 27.1% 41.0% -3.0% 8.3% 1.0% 16.6%


* Mature numbers do not reflect leveraged trend.





		Commissioners- Medical Provider Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Medical Provider Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-07 opposing the split of the Griffin Judicial Circuit and the 


creation of a separate circuit for Fayette County.


Refer to Resolution 2013-07 attached as backup to this request. 


 


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-07 opposing the split of the Griffin Judicial Circuit and the 


creation of a separate circuit for Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 14, 2013







County of Fayette; 
State of Georgia 
 


RESOLUTION  2013-07 
 


A RESOLUTION OPPOSING THE SPLIT OF THE GRIFFIN 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT AND THE CREATION OF A SEPARATE 


CIRCUIT FOR FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
WHEREAS, Fayette County resides in the Griffin Judicial Circuit along with Pike County, Spalding County and Upson 


County; and 
 
WHEREAS, There has been past discussion of creating an autonomous circuit for Fayette County; and 
 
WHEREAS,  A bill was presented in the Georgia House of Representatives in 2003 to create the “Fayette Judicial 


Circuit,” but it did not move forward; and 
 
WHEREAS,  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners had a financial feasibility study performed in 2008 on 


creating a separate judicial circuit and it showed increased costs for the Fayette County Government and 
the State Government; and 


 
WHEREAS,  The creation of a separate circuit for Fayette County would, in fact, create a one-judge circuit; and 


 
WHEREAS,  One-judge circuits cause significant problems by not providing flexibility, for instance in conflict-of-interest 


cases, and the case load would be overwhelming, slowing due process for Fayette County residents;  
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County does hereby formally oppose the 
split of the Griffin Judicial Circuit and creation of a separate circuit for Fayette County. 
            
 So resolved this 14th day of March 2013, by the 
 
     
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
Attest:       _____________________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-07 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-07 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-08 supporting the rescission of the Road Tax Penalty 


from the Transportation Investment Act.


Refer to Resolution 2013-08 attached as backup to this request. 


 


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-08 supporting the rescission of the Road Tax Penalty from the 


Transportation Investment Act.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 14, 2013







County of Fayette; 
State of Georgia 
 


RESOLUTION  2013-08 
 


A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RESCINDING THE ROAD TAX 
PENALTY FROM THE TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT ACT 


 
WHEREAS,  The Transportation Investment Act of 2010 (TIA) was passed hurriedly as the 2010 General Assembly 


waned to a close, with little public input and little public knowledge of what was contained in the bill; and 
 
WHEREAS, The overwhelming majority of citizens in Fayette County, both Republican and Democrat, voted in 


opposition of the TIA referendum held in July of 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Not a single county in the traffic-filled metropolitan Atlanta Region approved the TIA referendum; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Transportation Investment Act referendum was voted down by citizen taxpayers in the Northwest 


Georgia Region, Georgia Mountains Region, Atlanta Region, Three Rivers Region, Northeast Georgia 
Region, Middle Georgia Region, Southwest Georgia Region, South Georgia Region and the Coastal 
Region; and 


 
WHEREAS,  We determine it is un-American and undemocratic to create a bill touted as a referendum, asking the 


electorate to decide, and penalize them if they oppose the measure; and 
 


WHEREAS,  We view any claim that the citizen taxpayers brought this egregious penalty onto themselves as 
thoughtless and irresponsible as the general public had little idea of what was in TIA bill; and 


          
WHEREAS,  There was no “local opportunity to decide” as the entire process, including the referendum and penalty 


was mandated by the State Legislature; and 
 
WHEREAS,  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners believes, “One should not treat others in ways that one 


would not like to be treated,” and the State Legislature has not levied such penalties against itself;  
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County does hereby formally request that 
the State Legislature, reflecting the desires of Georgia’s citizens with full accountability, rescind all penalties from the TIA as 
stated in Senate Bill 73.  Be it further resolved that the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County pose no objection with 
three regions that approved the TIA retaining the lower 10% match for the duration of the tax period. 
            
 So resolved this 14th day of March 2013, by the 
 
     
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
Attest:       _____________________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-08 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-08 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-09 removing Fayette County from the Concept 3 Transit 


Plan.


Refer to Resolution 2013-09 attached as backup to this request. 


Consideration of Chairman Brown's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-09 removing Fayette County from the Concept 3 Transit 


Plan.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 14, 2013







County of Fayette; 
State of Georgia 
 


 
RESOLUTION  2013-09 


 
RESOLUTION TO REMOVE FAYETTE COUNTY FROM THE 


CONCEPT 3 TRANSIT PLAN 
 


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has a population of approximately 107,000 and a land mass of almost 200 square miles; 


and  
 
WHEREAS, Fayette County’s projected population for 2030 is expected only to be 179,000; and 
 
WHEREAS,  The transit projects listed for Fayette County in the Concept 3 transit plan are cost prohibitive and not 


suited for the county’s low density land use plan; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Fayette County commuters make up an extremely small portion of the ridership with mass transit in 


metropolitan Atlanta; and 
 


WHEREAS,  Fayette County’s ability to draw economic development and quality residents is not dependent upon 
mass transit, but, rather upon its unique rural quality of life; and 


 
WHEREAS,  The conservative culture within Fayette County frowns upon a system that is not close to self-sustaining, 


requiring enormous subsidies, while eliminating routes and personnel in the face of declining revenues; 
and 


          
WHEREAS,  It is the duty of all jurisdictions in Fayette County to focus on protecting our quality of life, residential 


density remaining low, our excellent school system, our less congested roads, our green spaces and our 
exceptional commitment to public safety, which keeps our community strong and able to attract high 
paying jobs to Fayette County, avoiding attempts to mimic more rampant growth patterns in other areas; 


 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County does hereby formally request to all 
regional and state entities that Fayette County be removed from the Concept 3 transit plan and all other plans requiring 
publicly subsidized transit in Fayette County. 
            
 So resolved this 14th day of March 2013, by the 
 
     
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
Attest:       _____________________________ 
       Steve Brown, Chairman 
_____________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-09 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-09 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of administration of West Fayetteville Bypass related to handling the legal ramifications, existing rate of completion and 


current environmental issues.


Chairman Brown has thoroughly studied the West Fayetteville Bypass since the day it was introduced as a county TSPLOST project back 


in 2003.  After consulting with our county's attorney and road / engineering staff, Chairman Brown is offering a recommendation to the 


Board of Commissioners on how to proceed with the bypass project. 


 


Please see the attached memorandum from Chairman Brown.


Approval of recommendation on future administration of West Fayetteville Bypass related to handling the legal ramifications, existing rate 


of completion and current environmental issues.


Funds for this request have been budgeted.


Yes


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, March 14, 2013







March 14 Agenda Item 


 


AGENDA ITEM: 


 


Administration of West Fayetteville Bypass related to handling legal ramifications, existing rate of completion and 


current environmental issues. 


 


 


 


 


MEMORANDUM 
 


From:  Chairman Steve Brown 


 


To:  Board of Commissioners 


 


Date:  March 5, 2013 


 


Subject: Administration of West Fayetteville Bypass related to handling legal ramifications, existing rate of 


completion and current environmental issues 


 


As someone who has thoroughly studied the West Fayetteville Bypass and opposed it since the day it was introduced 


as a county TSPLOST project back in 2003, I am forced to concede that former Commissioners Lee Hearn, Robert 


Horgan and former Chairman Herb Frady have achieved their objective of pushing Phase II of the bypass far enough 


along so that we are unable prevent its completion. 


 


After consulting with our county’s attorney, road and engineering staff, I offer the following thoughts. 


 


Staff acknowledges there was an outright attempt to force Phase II of the bypass into an ultra-fast engineering and 


construction mode so as to push the project far enough along that completion would be imminent.  I personally 


witnessed the constant prodding from then-County Administrator Jack Krakeel and then-Commissioner Lee Hearn on 


the TSPLOST committee to accelerate Phase II. 


 


 It is truly distressing that our new Interim County Attorney revealed that he discovered 10 properties that are still in 


condemnation along Phase II, either in the courts or other means, but the county took the land from the local 


property owners and began building Phase II of the bypass on those parcels anyway.  I consider this careless 


methodology to be both inappropriate and unconscionable, opening the county up to considerable risk by not 


knowing the actual costs of land acquisitions and possible court-imposed damages. 


 


For the record, I do not hold county staff accountable for any of the irresponsible and inappropriate actions to 


accelerate Phase II without officially acquiring the land and determining the total land costs in advance as that 


process was totally driven by the majority from the previous Board of Commissioners, Jack Krakeel and former-


County Attorney Scott Bennett.  


 


The southern section of Phase II (everything south of Eastin Road which accounts for 50% of the length of the entire 


project) was completed last year. 


 


The section from Eastin Road to State Route 92 was substantially complete at the beginning of the year.  Our new 


Board of Commissioners recently delayed material contract approvals for the bypass so that we could thoroughly 


evaluate our position. 


 


I report that we are shackled by a contract approved by former-Chairman Frady and former-Commissioners Hearn 


and Horgan.  Undeniably, the contractor, E.R. Snell, has completed a majority of the work from Eastin Road to State 


Route 92 with the contract calling for finish paving in May. 


 







The contractor has to be paid in full or the county government is in breach of contract as we are locked into a binding 


agreement from the former majority on the Board of Commissioners.  If we continue to halt the work, we lose a 


significant amount of taxpayer dollars with nothing to show for it.  In addition, we are also experiencing erosion 


problems from the prepared road bed now in place, and it will cost even more taxpayer dollars, beyond the binding 


agreement for road construction, to contain that damage if the road bed is not paved. 


 


We also have another contract where we are locked into a binding agreement from the former majority on the Board 


of Commissioners with contractor McCarthy Improvements related to the bridge at Whitewater Creek.  As with the 


other contractor, the work is in progress and terminating the project would result in a breach of contract, meaning 


the taxpayers would pay for the total project without the work being performed. 


 


The roundabout project at State Route 92 is in the design phase.  Once our new County Administrator was officially 


employed with the county, I asked him to immediately work with staff on finding a less expensive and less harmful 


design on the homes and businesses in the area.  I am pleased to announce that it appears the road and engineering 


staff have come up with a better, less expensive option. 


 


The original roundabout plan cost $1.7 million and had a significant impact on the surrounding homes and 


businesses.  An alternate plan, costing much less, avoiding a major utility relocation and greatly reduces the impact 


on the neighbors. 


 


The majority on the previous Board of Commissioners moved forward on design for components on Phase III of the 


bypass.  Staff had begun the preliminary planning process. 


 


In looking for the best solution possible under the constrained circumstances, I offer the following motion to the 


Board of Commissioners: 


 


I move that the Board of Commissioners, to avoid a lawsuit based on breach of contract related to binding 


agreements passed by the majority on the previous Board of Commissioners and to avoid paying the cost of resolving 


continued environmental damages from leaving the currently formed road bed unpaved, allow the completion of 


Phase II up to State Route 92.  Likewise, I move that the roundabout previously approved by the majority on the 


previous Board of Commissioners be reconfigured to a normal four-way intersection with a reduced cost and a 


reduced impact on the neighbors.  In addition, I further move that Phase III of the West Fayetteville Bypass be 


officially terminated as a planned project and removed from the Fayette County Transportation Plan as a new road 


segment project.  Finally, I conclude this motion with an official apology from the county government to the 


landowners and taxpayers of Fayette County for the local government not being receptive on the issue of the West 


Fayetteville Bypass project and county’s forcing the construction of Phase II, even before a substantial amount of the 


land was purchased just to handcuff the current Board of Commissioners to the completion of the phase because of 


the binding contracts of their predecessors.  May we never see such thoughtlessness in this county ever again.  So 


moved. 


 


 


 





		Commissioners- West Fayetteville Bypass Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- West Fayetteville Bypass Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Extension Services Kim Jackson


Proclamation of March 16, 2013 as "Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Day".


Since 1982, over 150 Fayette County residents have gone through the training program offered by the University of Georgia's 


Cooperative Extension Program.   


 


These volunteers service Fayette County's citizens by educating residents on safe and effective gardening practices, natural resources 


protection, and conservation.   


 


Through their volunteer work, the Master Gardeners have assisted citizens with plant clinics, school programs, manning phone hotlines, 


demonstration gardens, and other outreach programs.  Last year, they contributed 5,442 volunteer hours which represent a saving of 


$107,489.38 that would otherwise have to be performed by paid staff.   Despite serious financial cutbacks to Extension Services 


throughout Georgia, the Master Gardeners have continued to make educational outreach possible in Fayette County and the state.


Proclamation of March 16, 2013 as "Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Day".


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 14, 2013











 


PROCLAMATION 


 


MASTER GARDENER EXTENSION VOLUNTEER APPRCIATION DAY 


 


WHEREAS, The Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Program is a national volunteer horticultural 
education training program sponsored by Cooperative Extension, the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, and the counties of the cooperating states; and 


 


WHEREAS, The Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Program provides avid gardeners with intensive 
education in research-based horticultural principles and pest control practices; and 


 


WHEREAS, New Master Gardener Extension Volunteers must initially provide at least 50 hours of volunteer 
service through their County Extension Offices, working on Community and school garden 
projects, conducting garden clinics, and answering questions; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County’s Master Gardener Extension Volunteers, in 2012, volunteered 5,442 hours—
representing $107,489.38 in labor, traveled 25,018 miles, answered 1,603 telephone calls, and 
provided technical information and services to 5,002 citizens; and  


 


WHEREAS, On Saturday, March 16, 2013, Master Gardener Extension Volunteers throughout the State of 
Georgia and Fayette County will celebrate Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Day by 
providing horticultural education, plant and soil testing clinics, and lectures in shopping malls 
and gardening centers; and 


 


WHEREAS, In the spirit of volunteerism, Master Gardener Extension Volunteers have provided and contine 
to provide valuable services to Georgia communities through education and training programs;  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Fayette County Board of Commissioners proclaims Saturday, 
March 16, 2013 as 


 


MASTER GARDENER EXTENSION VOLUNTEER DAY 


 


and in so doing the Board thanks all of the Master Gardener Extension Volunteers who graciously serve the 
citizens of Fayette County with their time, talents, and treasure, and the Board calls upon all citizens to consider 
volunteering with the Master Gardener Extension Program. 


 


 So Proclaimed this 14th Day of March 2013 


 


         BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


         FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


         _________________________ 


             Steve Brown, Chairman 





		Extension- Proclamation Agenda Request File

		Extension- Proclamation Backup

		Extension- Proclamation Backup-1

		Extension- Proclamation Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Department Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone as the primary vendor, to C.W. 


Matthews, Inc. of Tyrone as the secondary vendor, and to C.W. Matthews, Inc. of Forest Park as a backup vendor for the purchase of 


asphalt for the 2013 calendar year, in an amount not to exceed $2,660,000.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contracts.


Each year, the Road Department contracts for the purchase of various mixes of asphalt as needed.    To that end, the Purchasing 


Department released Invitation to Bid #872 to procure an agreement for asphalt purchases for the calendar year ending December 31, 


2013.   


 


Notices of the opportunity to bid were direct mailed to eleven (11) contractors, and the opportunity was extended via Fayette Daily News, 


the county's website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org) and Channel 23.  Moreover, the Purchasing 


Department has recently began expanding the number of directly contacted vendors through the Georgia Procurement Registry, or GPR.  


By utilizing GPR, ninety (90) recipients were electronically notified of an opportunity to bid; meaning 101 vendors received notification 


either electronically or by mail.  Three vendors, representing six plants, responded to the invitation to bid. 


 


Asphalt prices are established on the Asphalt Cement Price Index which is maintained by GDOT.  Based on recent trends, the relevant 


Index range is anticipated to be between $501 - $700 dollars.  Within that range, E.R. Snell has bid the lowest prices (See Attachment D). 


The Road Department recommends low bidder E.R. Snell for the primary contract, C.W. Matthews' Tyrone plant for a secondary contract, 


and C.W. Matthew's Forest Park plant as a backup contract should the primary and secondary vendors not be available.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone as the primary vendor, to C.W. 


Matthews, Inc. of Tyrone as the secondary vendor, and to C.W. Matthews, Inc. of Forest Park as a backup vendor for the purchase of 


asphalt for the 2013 calendar year, in an amount not to exceed $2,660,000.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contracts.


See backup material (Attachment C) for funding sources.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Staff reserves the ability to purchase asphalt from the C.W. Matthews' Forest Park Plant if the total cost to a specific project, considering 


hauling, is cheaper.


ConsentThursday, March 14, 2013







 


 


To:  Steve Rapson 


From:  Ted L. Burgess 


Date:  March 6, 2013 


Subject: Bid #872 – Asphalt 


Each year, the Road Department contracts for the purchase of various mixes of asphalt as 
needed.  The contract is primarily for a product called Superior Performing Asphalt Pavements 
(Superpave), which was the result in 1993 of research by the U.S. Strategic Highway Research 
Program. 


The Purchasing Department released Invitation to Bid #872 to procure an agreement for asphalt 
purchases for the calendar year ending December 31, 2013.  Notices of the opportunity to bid 
were direct-mailed to 11 contractors.  In addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette 
News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and 
Channel 23.   


The Purchasing Department has recently begun expanding the number of directly contacted 
vendors through the Georgia Procurement Registry.  This is a web-based system used by the 
state of Georgia to post and advertise solicitations.  Since asphalt cannot be hauled long 
distances from the plant to the road construction site, the number of vendors who can 
realistically compete is limited.  It was decided to use the Registry to determine if there were any 
available vendors who had not been reached by traditional efforts.  The Register sent electronic 
notices to 90 recipients. 


Three vendors submitted bids for asphalt from a total of six plants.  One of the bids was from a 
vendor notified through the Georgia Procurement Registry. 


Asphalt prices are established based on the Asphalt Cement Price Index maintained by the 
Georgia Department of Transportation, which is updated every month (please see the 
attachment).  Based on recent trends, the relevant Index range is anticipated to be between 
$501 and $700.  Within this range, E.R. Snell Contractor has bid the lowest prices.  The Road 
Department recommends the lowest bidder, E.R. Snell’s Tyrone plant, for the primary contract.  
The Department recommends the second-lowest bid, from C.W. Matthews’ Tyrone plant, for a 
secondary contract. 



http://www.glga.org/

fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A







The Department recommends a backup contract be awarded to the C.W. Matthews’ Forest Park 
plant, in case the primary and secondary contracted vendors are not available.  The backup 
contract would include the five mixtures of Superpave asphalt.  A backup contract is not 
recommended for 4.75 mm asphalt, because the Road Department does not use that mixture 
often. 


The Purchasing Department supports the Road Department’s recommendations. 


Attachment 







fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B







Road Department Asphalt Contract for CY 2013


Supporting information for Not-to-Exceed Estimate


Item Funding Source Amount


Inman, Goza and SR 92 intersection project SPLOST $115,000


West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 2 SPLOST $650,000


2013 Spring (FY 2013) General Fund $614,000


2013 Spring (FY 2013) - GDOT LMIG $56,000


2013 Fall (FY 2014) General Fund $425,000


2013 Fall (FY 2014) - GDOT LMIG $566,000


Brooks LMIG Brooks $10,000


Fayetteville LMIG Fayetteville $124,000


Valleywood Road (Tyrone) Tyrone $100,000


Total $2,660,000



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment C







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $26.82 $27.30 $32.51 $26.86 $30.32 $30.08 $29.46


226-250 $28.04 $28.45 $33.78 $28.09 $31.55 $31.31 $30.71 lowest


251-275 $29.26 $29.60 $35.04 $29.32 $32.78 $32.54 $31.96


276-300 $30.48 $30.74 $36.31 $30.55 $34.01 $33.77 $33.21 next lowest


301-325 $31.70 $31.89 $37.58 $31.78 $35.24 $35.00 $34.46


326-350 $32.92 $33.04 $38.85 $33.01 $36.47 $36.23 $35.71 3rd lowest


351-375 $34.14 $34.19 $40.12 $34.24 $37.70 $37.46 $36.96


376-400 $35.36 $35.33 $41.39 $35.47 $38.93 $38.69 $38.21


401-425 $36.58 $36.48 $42.66 $36.70 $40.16 $39.92 $39.46


426-450 $37.80 $37.63 $43.93 $37.93 $41.39 $41.15 $40.71


451-475 $39.02 $38.78 $45.19 $39.16 $42.62 $42.38 $41.96


476-500 $40.24 $39.92 $46.46 $40.39 $43.85 $43.61 $43.21


501-525 $41.46 $41.07 $47.73 $41.62 $45.08 $44.84 $44.46


526-550 $42.68 $42.22 $49.00 $42.85 $46.31 $46.07 $45.71


551-575 $43.90 $43.37 $50.27 $44.08 $47.54 $47.30 $46.96


576-600 $45.12 $44.51 $51.54 $45.31 $48.77 $48.53 $48.21


601-625 $46.34 $45.66 $52.81 $46.54 $50.00 $49.76 $49.46


626-650 $47.56 $46.81 $54.08 $47.77 $51.23 $50.99 $50.71


651-675 $48.78 $47.96 $55.34 $49.00 $52.46 $52.22 $51.96


676-700 $50.00 $49.10 $56.61 $50.23 $53.69 $53.45 $53.21


701-725 $51.22 $50.25 $57.88 $51.46 $54.92 $54.68 $54.46


726-750 $52.44 $51.40 $59.15 $52.69 $56.15 $55.91 $55.71


751-775 $53.66 $52.55 $60.42 $53.92 $57.38 $57.14 $56.96


776-800 $54.88 $53.69 $61.69 $55.15 $58.61 $58.37 $58.21


801-825 $56.10 $54.84 $62.96 $56.38 $59.84 $59.60 $59.46


826-850 $57.32 $55.99 $64.23 $57.61 $61.07 $60.83 $60.71


851-875 $58.54 $57.14 $65.49 $58.84 $62.30 $62.06 $61.96


876-900 $59.76 $58.28 $66.76 $60.07 $63.53 $63.29 $63.21


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt


4.75 MM


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment D







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $27.32 $28.09 $34.41 $27.63 $30.63 $30.31 $29.80


226-250 $28.54 $29.20 $35.66 $28.86 $31.78 $31.49 $31.00 lowest


251-275 $29.76 $30.31 $36.92 $30.09 $32.93 $32.67 $32.20


276-300 $30.98 $31.42 $38.18 $31.32 $34.08 $33.85 $33.40 next lowest


301-325 $32.20 $32.53 $39.43 $32.55 $35.23 $35.03 $34.60


326-350 $33.42 $33.64 $40.69 $33.78 $36.38 $36.21 $35.80 3rd lowest


351-375 $34.64 $34.75 $41.94 $35.01 $37.53 $37.39 $37.00


376-400 $35.86 $35.86 $43.20 $36.24 $38.68 $38.57 $38.20


401-425 $37.08 $36.97 $44.46 $37.47 $39.83 $39.75 $39.40


426-450 $38.30 $38.08 $45.71 $38.70 $40.98 $40.93 $40.60


451-475 $39.52 $39.19 $46.97 $39.93 $42.13 $42.11 $41.80


476-500 $40.74 $40.30 $48.23 $41.16 $43.28 $43.29 $43.00


501-525 $41.96 $41.41 $49.48 $42.39 $44.43 $44.47 $44.20


526-550 $43.18 $42.52 $50.74 $43.62 $45.58 $45.65 $45.40


551-575 $44.40 $43.63 $51.99 $44.85 $46.73 $46.83 $46.60


576-600 $45.62 $44.74 $53.25 $46.08 $47.88 $48.01 $47.80


601-625 $46.84 $45.85 $54.51 $47.31 $49.03 $49.19 $49.00


626-650 $48.06 $46.96 $55.76 $48.54 $50.18 $50.37 $50.20


651-675 $49.28 $48.07 $57.02 $49.77 $51.33 $51.55 $51.40


676-700 $50.50 $49.18 $58.28 $51.00 $52.48 $52.73 $52.60


701-725 $51.72 $50.29 $59.53 $52.23 $53.63 $53.91 $53.80


726-750 $52.94 $51.40 $60.79 $53.46 $54.78 $55.09 $55.00


751-775 $54.16 $52.51 $62.04 $54.69 $55.93 $56.27 $56.20


776-800 $55.38 $53.62 $63.30 $55.92 $57.08 $57.45 $57.40


801-825 $56.60 $54.73 $64.56 $57.15 $58.23 $58.63 $58.60


826-850 $57.82 $55.84 $65.81 $58.38 $59.38 $59.81 $59.80


851-875 $59.04 $56.95 $67.07 $59.61 $60.53 $60.99 $61.00


876-900 $60.26 $58.06 $68.33 $60.84 $61.68 $62.17 $62.20


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt


9.5 MM Type I Superpave


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $27.11 $28.41 $34.76 $27.60 $30.75 $30.68 $30.61


226-250 $28.23 $29.49 $36.03 $28.80 $31.90 $31.88 $31.81 lowest


251-275 $29.35 $30.57 $37.30 $30.00 $33.05 $33.08 $33.01


276-300 $30.47 $31.65 $38.57 $31.20 $34.20 $34.28 $34.21 next lowest


301-325 $31.59 $32.73 $39.84 $32.40 $35.35 $35.48 $35.41


326-350 $32.71 $33.81 $41.12 $33.60 $36.50 $36.68 $36.61 3rd lowest


351-375 $33.83 $34.89 $42.39 $34.80 $37.65 $37.88 $37.81


376-400 $34.95 $35.97 $43.66 $36.00 $38.80 $39.08 $39.01


401-425 $36.07 $37.05 $44.93 $37.20 $39.95 $40.28 $40.21


426-450 $37.19 $38.13 $46.20 $38.40 $41.10 $41.48 $41.41


451-475 $38.31 $39.21 $47.47 $39.60 $42.25 $42.68 $42.61


476-500 $39.43 $40.29 $48.74 $40.80 $43.40 $43.88 $43.81


501-525 $40.55 $41.37 $50.01 $42.00 $44.55 $45.08 $45.01


526-550 $41.67 $42.45 $51.29 $43.20 $45.70 $46.28 $46.21


551-575 $42.79 $43.53 $52.56 $44.40 $46.85 $47.48 $47.41


576-600 $43.91 $44.61 $53.83 $45.60 $48.00 $48.68 $48.61


601-625 $45.03 $45.69 $55.10 $46.80 $49.15 $49.88 $49.81


626-650 $46.15 $46.77 $56.37 $48.00 $50.30 $51.08 $51.01


651-675 $47.27 $47.85 $57.64 $49.20 $51.45 $52.28 $52.21


676-700 $48.39 $48.93 $58.91 $50.40 $52.60 $53.48 $53.41


701-725 $49.51 $50.01 $60.18 $51.60 $53.75 $54.68 $54.61


726-750 $50.63 $51.09 $61.46 $52.80 $54.90 $55.88 $55.81


751-775 $51.75 $52.17 $62.73 $54.00 $56.05 $57.08 $57.01


776-800 $52.87 $53.25 $64.00 $55.20 $57.20 $58.28 $58.21


801-825 $53.99 $54.33 $65.27 $56.40 $58.35 $59.48 $59.41


826-850 $55.11 $55.41 $66.54 $57.60 $59.50 $60.68 $60.61


851-875 $56.23 $56.49 $67.81 $58.80 $60.65 $61.88 $61.81


876-900 $57.35 $57.57 $69.08 $60.00 $61.80 $63.08 $63.01


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt


9.5 MM Type II Superpave


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $26.21 $27.66 $34.73 $26.90 $30.21 $30.12 $29.87


226-250 $27.19 $28.64 $35.95 $27.95 $31.29 $31.27 $31.02 lowest


251-275 $28.17 $29.63 $37.16 $29.00 $32.37 $32.42 $32.17


276-300 $29.15 $30.62 $38.38 $30.05 $33.45 $33.57 $33.32 next lowest


301-325 $30.13 $31.61 $39.60 $31.10 $34.53 $34.72 $34.47


326-350 $31.11 $32.60 $40.82 $32.15 $35.61 $35.87 $35.62 3rd lowest


351-375 $32.09 $33.59 $42.04 $33.20 $36.69 $37.02 $36.77


376-400 $33.07 $34.58 $43.26 $34.25 $37.77 $38.17 $37.92


401-425 $34.05 $35.57 $44.48 $35.30 $38.85 $39.32 $39.07


426-450 $35.03 $36.56 $45.70 $36.35 $39.93 $40.47 $40.22


451-475 $36.01 $37.55 $46.91 $37.40 $41.01 $41.62 $41.37


476-500 $36.99 $38.54 $48.13 $38.45 $42.09 $42.77 $42.52


501-525 $37.97 $39.53 $49.35 $39.50 $43.17 $43.92 $43.67


526-550 $38.95 $40.52 $50.57 $40.55 $44.25 $45.07 $44.82


551-575 $39.93 $41.51 $51.79 $41.60 $45.33 $46.22 $45.97


576-600 $40.91 $42.50 $53.01 $42.65 $46.41 $47.37 $47.12


601-625 $41.89 $43.49 $54.23 $43.70 $47.49 $48.52 $48.27


626-650 $42.87 $44.48 $55.45 $44.75 $48.57 $49.67 $49.42


651-675 $43.85 $45.47 $56.66 $45.80 $49.65 $50.82 $50.57


676-700 $44.83 $46.46 $57.88 $46.85 $50.73 $51.97 $51.72


701-725 $45.81 $47.45 $59.10 $47.90 $51.81 $53.12 $52.87


726-750 $46.79 $48.44 $60.32 $48.95 $52.89 $54.27 $54.02


751-775 $47.77 $49.43 $61.54 $50.00 $53.97 $55.42 $55.17


776-800 $48.75 $50.42 $62.76 $51.05 $55.05 $56.57 $56.32


801-825 $49.73 $51.41 $63.98 $52.10 $56.13 $57.72 $57.47


826-850 $50.71 $52.40 $65.20 $53.15 $57.21 $58.87 $58.62


851-875 $51.69 $53.39 $66.41 $54.20 $58.29 $60.02 $59.77


876-900 $52.67 $54.38 $67.63 $55.25 $59.37 $61.17 $60.92


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt


12.5 MM Superpave


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $25.17 $25.92 $31.58 $25.95 $28.92 $28.34 $29.80


226-250 $26.02 $26.74 $32.52 $26.88 $29.85 $29.29 $30.82 lowest


251-275 $26.87 $27.56 $33.46 $27.81 $30.78 $30.24 $31.84


276-300 $27.72 $28.37 $34.40 $28.74 $31.71 $31.19 $32.86 next lowest


301-325 $28.57 $29.19 $35.33 $29.67 $32.64 $32.14 $33.88


326-350 $29.42 $30.01 $36.27 $30.60 $33.57 $33.09 $34.90 3rd lowest


351-375 $30.27 $30.83 $37.21 $31.53 $34.50 $34.04 $35.92


376-400 $31.12 $31.64 $38.15 $32.46 $35.43 $34.99 $36.94


401-425 $31.97 $32.46 $39.09 $33.39 $36.36 $35.94 $37.96


426-450 $32.82 $33.28 $40.03 $34.32 $37.29 $36.89 $38.98


451-475 $33.67 $34.10 $40.97 $35.25 $38.22 $37.84 $40.00


476-500 $34.52 $34.91 $41.91 $36.18 $39.15 $38.79 $41.02


501-525 $35.37 $35.73 $42.84 $37.11 $40.08 $39.74 $42.04


526-550 $36.22 $36.55 $43.78 $38.04 $41.01 $40.69 $43.06


551-575 $37.07 $37.37 $44.72 $38.97 $41.94 $41.64 $44.08


576-600 $37.92 $38.18 $45.66 $39.90 $42.87 $42.59 $45.10


601-625 $38.77 $39.00 $46.60 $40.83 $43.80 $43.54 $46.12


626-650 $39.62 $39.82 $47.54 $41.76 $44.73 $44.49 $47.14


651-675 $40.47 $40.63 $48.48 $42.69 $45.66 $45.44 $48.16


676-700 $41.32 $41.45 $49.42 $43.62 $46.59 $46.39 $49.18


701-725 $42.17 $42.27 $50.35 $44.55 $47.52 $47.34 $50.20


726-750 $43.02 $43.09 $51.29 $45.48 $48.45 $48.29 $51.22


751-775 $43.87 $43.90 $52.23 $46.41 $49.38 $49.24 $52.24


776-800 $44.72 $44.72 $53.17 $47.34 $50.31 $50.19 $53.26


801-825 $45.57 $45.54 $54.11 $48.27 $51.24 $51.14 $54.28


826-850 $46.42 $46.36 $55.05 $49.20 $52.17 $52.09 $55.30


851-875 $47.27 $47.17 $55.99 $50.13 $53.10 $53.04 $56.32


876-900 $48.12 $47.99 $56.93 $51.06 $54.03 $53.99 $57.34


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt
19 MM Superpave


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e







ACPI
($/Ton)


 Previous
Primary
Award 


E.R. SNELL 
CONTRACTOR, 
INC. - TYRONE 


PLANT


BALDWIN 
PAVING CO., 


INC.


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #064 


TYRONE


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #056 


FOREST PARK


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #061 


NEWNAN


C.W. MATTHEWS 
CONTRACTING 


CO., INC. - 
PLANT #004 


GRIFFIN


201-225 $24.87 $25.22 $32.51 $24.93 $28.03 $27.70 $28.66


226-250 $25.59 $26.00 $31.91 $25.78 $28.88 $28.57 $29.61 lowest


251-275 $26.31 $26.78 $32.78 $26.63 $29.73 $29.44 $30.56


276-300 $27.03 $27.55 $33.65 $27.48 $30.58 $30.31 $31.51 next lowest


301-325 $27.75 $28.33 $34.52 $28.33 $31.43 $31.18 $32.46


326-350 $28.47 $29.11 $35.40 $29.18 $32.28 $32.05 $33.41 3rd lowest


351-375 $29.19 $29.89 $36.27 $30.03 $33.13 $32.92 $34.36


376-400 $29.91 $30.66 $37.14 $30.88 $33.98 $33.79 $35.31


401-425 $30.63 $31.44 $38.01 $31.73 $34.83 $34.66 $36.26


426-450 $31.35 $32.22 $38.88 $32.58 $35.68 $35.53 $37.21


451-475 $32.07 $33.00 $39.75 $33.43 $36.53 $36.40 $38.16


476-500 $32.79 $33.77 $40.62 $34.28 $37.38 $37.27 $39.11


501-525 $33.51 $34.55 $41.49 $35.13 $38.23 $38.14 $40.06


526-550 $34.23 $35.33 $42.37 $35.98 $39.08 $39.01 $41.01


551-575 $34.95 $36.11 $43.24 $36.83 $39.93 $39.88 $41.96


576-600 $35.67 $36.88 $44.11 $37.68 $40.78 $40.75 $42.91


601-625 $36.39 $37.66 $44.98 $38.53 $41.63 $41.62 $43.86


626-650 $37.11 $38.44 $45.85 $39.38 $42.48 $42.49 $44.81


651-675 $37.83 $39.21 $46.72 $40.23 $43.33 $43.36 $45.76


676-700 $38.55 $39.99 $47.59 $41.08 $44.18 $44.23 $46.71


701-725 $39.27 $40.77 $48.46 $41.93 $45.03 $45.10 $47.66


726-750 $39.99 $41.55 $49.34 $42.78 $45.88 $45.97 $48.61


751-775 $40.71 $42.32 $50.21 $43.63 $46.73 $46.84 $49.56


776-800 $41.43 $43.10 $51.08 $44.48 $47.58 $47.71 $50.51


801-825 $42.15 $43.88 $51.95 $45.33 $48.43 $48.58 $51.46


826-850 $42.87 $44.66 $52.82 $46.18 $49.28 $49.45 $52.41


851-875 $43.59 $45.43 $53.69 $47.03 $50.13 $50.32 $53.36


876-900 $44.31 $46.21 $54.56 $47.88 $50.98 $51.19 $54.31


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid 872 - Asphalt
25 MM Superpave


  
  


  
  


A
nt


ic
ip


at
ed


 p
ric


e 
ra


ng
e





		Road- Bid 872 Agenda Request File

		Road- Bid 872 Backup

		Road- Bid 872 Backup

		Asphalt Bid 872 - Purchasing Backup 1

		Asphalt Bid 872 - Purchasing Backup 2

		Road - Annual Contract for Asphalt - Backup



		Asphalt Not-to-Exceed Backup












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
DEPARTMENT OUTREACH MEETING


Board of Commissioners


February 21, 2013


7:30 A.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Department Outreach Meeting on February 21,2013


at 7:30 a.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,


Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Mary Holland, Finance Director


Lewis Patterson, Human Resources Director
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners held a Department Outreach meeting with many of its


departments in the Public Meeting Room.


The meeting began at approximately 7:30 a.m. with breakfast.  Following breakfast, the division heads and


department heads gave presentations for an average of thirty minutes each, to the Board and answered


questions.  The following list delineates which departments gave presentations and the order in which they


were given:


1) 911 Communications.  A copy of the 911 Communications presentation, identified as “Attachment


1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2) Library.  A copy of the Library’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and


is made an official part hereof.







3) Buildings and Grounds.  A copy of Buildings and Grounds presentation, identified as “Attachment


3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


The Board and staff recessed from the Department Outreach Meeting for a break at 9:37 a.m. and


returned to the Department Outreach Meeting at 9:44 p.m.


4) Public Works (including Engineering, Road, and Fleet Maintenance).  A copy of Public Works,


Engineering, Road, and Fleet Maintenance presentations, identified as “Attachment 4", follow these


minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5) Parks and Recreation.  A copy of Parks and Recreation’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 5",


follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6) Fire and Emergency Services.  A copy of Fire and Emergency Services’ presentation, identified as


“Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7) Water System.  A copy of Water System’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these


minutes and is made an official part hereof.


The Board and staff recessed for lunch at 12:06 p.m. and returned to the Department Outreach


Meeting at 1:15 p.m.


8) Human Resources.  A copy of Human Resources’ presentation, identified as “Attachment 8", follows


these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9) Permits and Inspections.  A copy of Permits and Inspections’ presentation, identified as “Attachment


9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10) Tax Assessor.  A copy of Tax Assessor’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 10",follows these


minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11) Physical / Environmental Health Departments.  A copy of Physical / Environmental Health


Departments presentation, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official


part hereof.


12) Marshal’s Office.  A copy of the Marshals Office’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 12", follows


these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


The Board and staff recessed from the Department Outreach Meeting for a break at 3:28 p.m. and


returned to the Department Outreach Meeting at 3:40 p.m.







Minutes
Department Outreach Meeting
February 21, 2013
Page Number 3


13) Information Systems. A copy of Information System’s presentation, identified as “Attachment 13",


follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


14) Planning and Zoning Department.  A copy of Planning and Zoning Department’s presentation,


identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


The Board did not take any formal action and did not make any vote during the course of the Department


Outreach meeting.  The Department Outreach meeting ended at approximately 4:30 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 14th day of March 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk





